
 

Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

Meeting Agenda 

September 19, 2018 
7:00 P.M.  Village Hall, 10 S Municipal Drive 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

a) August 15, 2018 

 

IV. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a) Petition #18-017 Special Use for Solar Garden; 549 Heartland Drive 

Applicant: Harris Golf Cars 

 

 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Petition #18-017 Special Use for Solar Garden; 549 Heartland Drive 

Applicant: Harris Golf Cars 

 

b) County of Kane Zoning Petition for Solar Farm within Planning Jurisdiction 

Applicant: Soltage, LLC 

 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

 

a) None 

 

VII. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

VILLAGE of SUGAR GROVE 

PLANNNING COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD of APPEALS 

MINUTES of August 15, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting of the Sugar Grove Planning Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 

7:00 p.m. by Chairman Ochsenschlager in the Board Chambers of the Village of Sugar Grove Municipal 

Center. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

 Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals members present:   

Irv Ochsenschlager, Jim Eckert, John Guddendorf, Gregory Wilson, and 

Rebecca Sabo 

Absent: James White and Larry Jones 

  

Also present: Renee Hanlon, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Guddendorf moved to approve Minutes of the July 18, 2018 Meeting of the Planning 

Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals.  Commissioner Eckert provided the second. 

 

Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

Petition #18-012 Special Use for Master Sign Plan at 54 Snow Street 

Applicant: Sugar Grove Township 

 

Chairman Oschenschlager called the public hearing to order at 7:02 p.m.  Witnesses were sworn in by 

the Chairman.   

 

Administrator Hanlon provided a brief description of the request and the proposed master sign plan.  She 

explained that the special use is required in order for the township to remove and replace the outdated 

freestanding sign on the property. 

 

Chairman Oschenschlager closed the public hearing at 7:05p.m. 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

Petition #18-012 Special Use for Master Sign Plan at 54 Snow Street 

Applicant: Sugar Grove Township 

 

Commissioners discussed the request for special use and the proposed master sign plan. Tom Rowe, 

Sugar Grove Township, was in attendance and answered questions posed by commissioners. 

 



Village of Sugar Grove 

Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

July 18, 2018 

 

 

Commissioner Sabo moved to recommend to the Village Board approval of the special use for master 

sign plan with conditions as outlined in the staff report and an added condition that the sign shall be 

extinguished by 11:00 p.m. each evening. Commissioner Eckert provided the second.   

 

 

Motion passed by unanimous voice vote 

 

Petition 18-013 Plat of Easement Vacation 451 N Sugar Grove Parkway 

Applicant:  Jeff Newkirk, Culver’s 

 

Administrator Hanlon explained that when the Culver’s restaurant site was developed, the stormwater 

management area along the back of the lot had to be reconfigured in order to construct the drive onto 

Division Drive.  At the time, the engineer did not change the plat to reflect the physical change in the 

easement boundaries. She explained that this plat of easement vacation will establish the correct 

stormwater easement boundary. 

 

Commissioner Eckert moved to recommend to the Village Board approval of the Plat of Vacation 

Easement.  Commissioner Wilson provided the second. 

 

Motion passed by unanimous voice vote 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS: 

  

None 

 

PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS, PROJECTS UPDATES and MISCELLANEOUS 

INFORMATION 

 

Administrator Hanlon provided an update on development projects that will be coming before the 

Planning Commission. 

 

Commissioners discussed the status of different construction projects throughout the village. 

 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

Commissioner Sabo moved, Commissioner Wilson seconded, to adjourn.   

 

The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,   

Renee Hanlon 

Recording Secretary 



 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

P. Sean Michels 
 

VILLAGE 
ADMINISTRATOR 

Brent M. Eichelberger 
 

VILLAGE CLERK 

Cynthia Galbreath 

  

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

VILLAGE TRUSTEES 
 

Sean Herron 
Mari Johnson 

Ted Koch 
Heidi Lendi 

Rick Montalto 
David Paluch 

 

 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

A  D  V  I  S  O  R  Y 

R  E  P  O  R  T 

 
TO: Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

FROM: Walter Magdziarz, Community Development Director 

 Renee Hanlon, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  September 14, 2018 

PETITION: 18-017 

  

PROPOSAL 

The applicant is requesting a Special Use for a building mounted solar garden. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

HEARING DATE:   September 19, 2018 

PROJECT NAME:   Solar Garden, Harris Golf Cars, 549 Heartland Drive 

PETITIONER:   Harris Golf Cars 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H
e
a
rtla

n
d
 D

riv
e

 

Wheeler Road 

Subject 
Property 



 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

BACKGROUND & HISTORY 

The property located at 549 Heartland Drive Units A and B is currently occupied by Harris Golf Cars.  This 

business has been in operation on the property since at least 2007.  The business owner is proposing to 

construct a solar array on the roof with a total energy output of 43.31 kilowatts.  The majority, if not all, 

of the power generated will be consumed by Harris Golf Cars.  The applicant has notified 

Commonwealth Edison of their project. 

This building is a multi-occupant building.  The occupants of the building have been notified of the 

request and time and date of public hearing to consider this request.   

EXISTING ZONING 

Subject Property: M-1 SU Limited Manufacturing District with Special Use for retail and wholesale sales 

and servicing of golf carts, utility vehicles and outdoor storage of vehicles. 

North: M-1 Limited Manufacturing District                         

South: M-1 Limited Manufacturing District  

East: F Farming (Unincorporated Kane County) 

West: M-1 Limited Manufacturing District 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                

 

 

EVALUATION 

When considering special use requests, the Zoning Ordinance provides standards to be 

considered.  Each standard is addressed below. 

1. How will the special use be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives of the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the Zoning Ordinance?  

The addition of this solar garden will be in keeping with the objectives of both the Comprehensive 

Land Use Plan and the Zoning Ordinance.  The Comprehensive Land Use Plan encourages energy 

innovation.  This application is in full compliance with the requirements established for solar 

S
u

b
je

ct
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 



 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

gardens by the Zoning Ordinance. 

2. How will the special use be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be 

harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general 

vicinity, and will not alter the essential character of the area? 

The solar array will be located in a way that it will not be visible from the public right of way.   

3. Will the special use be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighborhood uses?  

The addition of the solar array is not associated with a change in use of the building. 

4. Will the special use be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as 

highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage structure, refuse disposal, water, sewers and 

schools or will the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use be able 

to provide such services?  

No 

5. Will the special use create excessive additional requirements, at public cost, for public facilities 

and services, and be detrimental to the economic welfare of the village?   

No 

6. Will the special use involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and/or conditions of 

operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by reason of 

excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors?  

No 

7. Will the special use have vehicular approaches to the property which shall be so designed as to 

not create an undue interference with traffic on surrounding public streets and highways?  

NA 

8. Will the special use increase the potential for flood damage to adjacent property, or require 

additional public expense for flood protection, rescue or relief?  

NA 

9. Will the special use result in the destruction, loss or damage of natural, scenic or historic features 

of major importance to the village?   

No 

PUBLIC RESPONSE 

The public hearing has been properly noticed.  The Community Development Department has 

not received inquiries regarding this petition. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of Petition #18-017 Special Use for Roof Mounted Solar Garden at 

549 Heartland Drive subject to the requirements of Section 11-4-21 of the Village of Sugar 

Grove Zoning Ordinance. 



 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

SAMPLE MOTION 

Based on the presented testimony and finding of fact, I move that the Planning Commission 

recommend to the Village Board approval of Petition #18-017 Special Use for Roof Mounted 

Solar Garden at 549 Heartland Drive subject to the requirements of Section 11-4-21 of the 

Village of Sugar Grove Zoning Ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Site Plan dated August 8, 2018 

 JA Solar cut sheets for equipment 

 Installer Certificate 

 ComEd application receipt 

















 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

P. Sean Michels 
 

VILLAGE 
ADMINISTRATOR 

Brent M. Eichelberger 
 

VILLAGE CLERK 

Cynthia Galbreath 

  

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

VILLAGE TRUSTEES 
 

Sean Herron 
Mari Johnson 

Ted Koch 
Heidi Lendi 

Rick Montalto 
David Paluch 

 

 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

A  D  V  I  S  O  R  Y 

R  E  P  O  R  T 

 
TO: Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 

FROM: Walter Magdziarz, Community Development Director 

 Renee Hanlon, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  September 14, 2018 

PETITION: Kane County Zoning Petition for Review 

  

PROPOSAL 

To review a zoning petition before Kane County for the construction and maintenance of a 2 megawatt 

solar farm which falls within the Village of Sugar Grove one and one-half mile planning jurisdiction. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

Subject Property 

Village of Sugar Grove 



 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

BACKGROUND & HISTORY 

County staff forwarded this petition to the Village for review, because the property falls within the 

Village’s planning jurisdiction.  The Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals is asked to review 

the petition and comment prior to public hearing on the petition.  The public hearing is scheduled for 

October 9, 2018.  Planning Commission comments will be forwarded to the Village Board and combined 

with Village Board comments before forwarding to the County for consideration by the Zoning Board of 

Appeals. 

The applicant is petitioning for a special use in order to establish and maintain a two (2) megawatt solar 

farm on a nine (9) acre portion of the property located at the southeast corner of Seavey Road and 

Lorang Road.  The petition includes plans for securing the solar farm, screening the solar farm from view, 

and decommissioning the solar farm.    

During the construction process, trucks carrying equipment will be routed to Sugar Grove Parkway via 

Lorang and Harter Roads.  This will temporarily add heavy truck traffic on Harter Road and Sugar Grove 

Parkway which will have a temporary impact on Village traffic, in particular, Harter Middle School traffic.  

The construction is expected to occur in 2019. 

FUTURE LAND USE 

 

 
 

The property is deliniated as Business Park on the Village of Sugar Grove Future Land Use Map.  

This proposed solar farm is consistent with this designation due to the temporary nature of the 

solar farm.  The narrative of the petition acknowledges the temporary nature of the use.  This 

solar farm is estimated to have a life of approximately thirty five (35) years.  Even if the 

Subject Property 



 

 
601 Heartland Drive                                                                                                                                             Phone (630) 391-7220 
Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554                                                 www.sugargroveil.gov                                         Facsimile (630) 391-7245 

 

surrounding properties are developed with business park uses within the thirty five (35) year life 

of the solar farm, there should be no conflict between the uses and the solar farm.  The solar farm 

will not physically impact the property; therefore, upon decommission, the property can be 

developed for business park uses.                                                                        

 

 

EVALUATION 

Staff reviewed the petition against the existing Village of Sugar Grove Zoning Ordinance as if the solar 

farm were being constructed within the Village jurisdiction.  The following differences were found: 

 The Village Zoning Ordinance requires an eight (8) foot high security fence with a self-locking 

gate mechanism.  The petition specifies a seven (7) foot high fence with lockable gate. 

 The Village Zoning Ordinance requires a letter of credit or similar financial surety for the 

implementation of the decommissioning plan.  This financial surety is to be used in the event 

the owner goes out of business prior to decommissioning and the Village is responsible for 

equipment removal and site restoration.  Kane County does not require financial surety. 

 The Village of Sugar Grove Zoning Ordinance requires a five (5) foot tall screening berm along 

both Seavey and Lorang Roads.  A combination of shade trees, evergreen trees and shrubs are 

required to be planted and maintained on the berm.  The petition specifies thirty six inch (36”) 

shrubs planted and maintained between the security fence and Seavey and Lorang Road rights 

of way.  The shrubs will be planted at a rate of one (1) per five (5) linear feet. 

 

ATTACHMENT 

 Kane County Application for Zoning Map Amendment 
















































	2018 0919
	2018 0815
	Advisory Report
	Attachments
	Advisory Report
	County Application

